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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 0IGFEB -1 PM 2: 54
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION

CLERK, US DISTRICT COUE
MIGOLE BISTAICT OF FLadlan
o JACKSONVILLE DISTRICT
TORRENCE BEAVERS, individually

and on behalf of all others similarly
Situated,

CASE NUMBER: 3|8 -wv-|9Y-D=2IRT™

Plaintiff,

V.
COMMAND SECURITY CORPORATION,

Defendant.

COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF PROVISIONS OF THE
FLSA SECTIONS §206 AND §207 AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff, TORRENCE BEAVERS (hereinafter “Plaintiff” or “Beavers”), by and through

his undersigned counsel, ilerein sues Defendants, COMMAND SECURITY CORPORATION,
(hereinafter referred to as “Defendant”™), pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b) of the Fair Labor
Standards Act (the “FLSA™) and states as follows:
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Plaintiff, TORRENCE BEAVERS, brings this action for violation of federal wage
and hour laws pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq., (the “FLSA”)
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated. Plaintiff alleges that he is entitled to
unpaid overtime wages, as required by 29 U.S.C. § 207 and liquidated damages for all prior wages
up to 40 in each work week not timely paid under Section §206.

2. The Fair Labor Standards Act is our nation’s foremost wage law. The overtime
requirements of the FLSA were meant to apply financial pressure to spread employment to avoid

Page 1 of 14

Feldman Williams PLLC | 6940 W. Linebaugh Ave. #101 | Tampa | Florida | 33548 | PH (813) 639-9366



Case 3:18-cv-00194-HES-JBT Document 1 Filed 02/01/18 Page 2 of 14 PagelD 2

the extra wage and to assure workers additional pay to compensate them for the burden of a work
week beyond the hours fixed in the act. See In re Novartis Wage & Hour Litig., 611 F.3d 141,
150 (2d Cir. N.Y. 2010). It requires minimum wage and overtime pay for certain non-exempt
employees. 29 U.S.C. § 213.

3. Plaintiff was employed as security officer by Defendant, and he was at all times
treated as an hourly, non-exempt employee.

4, Pursuant to the Defendant’s company policy and plan, Defendant was to pay
Plaintiff and all other security officers overtime hours at a rate one and one-half times their regular
rates of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek as required by 29 U.S.C.
§207(a)(1).

5. Plaintiff was to be paid in biweekly payments and at a base rate of $12.00 per hour,
with overtime rates of $18.00 per hour, which was time and one half his regular rate of pay.

6. Plaintiff’s primary job duties as an employee of Defendant consisted primarily of
manual labor and related security responsibilities well known by Defendant to be non-exempt job
duties under the FLSA.

7. Throughout Plaintiff's employment with Defendant, he was required to work in
excess of forty (40) hours per week in order to complete his job duties and responsibilities.

8. The allegations in this pleading are made without any admission that, as to any
particular allegation, Plaintiff bears the burden of pleading, proof, or persuasion. Plaintiff
reserves all rights to plead in the alternative.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

9. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff’'s FLSA claim pursuant to

28 U.S.C. § 1331, because this action involves a Federal Statute, 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq.
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10.  This Court has personal jurisdiction over this action because Defendant operates
substantial business in Duval County, Florida and the damages at issue occurred in Duval County,
Florida.

11.  Venue is proper to this Court pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

12.  Atall times relevant to this action, Plaintiff was an employee of Defendant within
the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §203(e)(1).

13.  Defendant, COMMAND SECURITY CORPORATION.,, is a Foreign, for profit
corporation with its principal address located at 512 Herndon Parkway, Suite A, Herndon, VA
20170, and may be served through its registered agent: CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY,
1201 Hays Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

14.  The overtime wage provisions set forth in 29 U.S.C. §207 apply to Defendant, as
they engage in interstate commerce under the definition of the FLSA and, employs greater than
two employees, and upon information and belief grossed more than $500,000.00 in operating
revenue during each of the three (3) or more fiscal years.

15.  All conditions precedent to the filing of this action have been performed.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

16.  Plaintiff was employed by Defendant as an hourly paid “Security Officer” from on
or about October 1, 2017 until the present working in Jacksonville, Florida.

17.  Atall times, Defendant treated Plaintiff as a non-exempt hourly paid employee, and
he was paid $12.00 per hour and is entitled to be paid $18.00 for all overtime hours worked.

18.  Plaintiff worked numerous overtime hours, but found that his work hours had been
edited off from the company time keeping system, and that there appeared to be problems with the

system properly recording and tracking all the work hours.

Page 3 of 14

Feldman Williams PLLC | 6940 W. Linebaugh Ave, Suite #101 | Tampa | Florida | 33625 | PH (813) 639-9366



Case 3:18-cv-00194-HES-JBT Document 1 Filed 02/01/18 Page 4 of 14 PagelD 4

19.  Plaintiff reported these errors to Defendant which issued corrected wage forms to
capture most of the missing work hours, some below 40 and overtime hours as well.

20.  However, to date, the Defendant has willfully failed and refused to compensate
Plaintiff for all the overtime hours worked at time and one half his regular rate of pay.

21.  Plaintiff notified Defendant that after receiving his paycheck for a two week period
of time, there still were errors and missing time, that he was not paid time and one half for all the
overtime hours worked of approximately 56 hours.

22.  Defendant was thus fully aware of Plaintiff’s overtime hours not being paid, and to
date has failed and refused to pay the Plaintiff.

23.  Defendant was also aware that Plaintiff had not been paid at least minimum wage
for all hours worked up to 40 in the work weeks, as he was shorted 6 hours from the bi-weekly pay
period.

24,  Plaintiff also had other time that was missing from the hours he actually worked
and to which he was not paid for due to additional errors or flaws with the time tracking system.

25.  Despite regularly working in excess of 40 hours per week during his employment
with Defendant, Plaintiff has never paid the proper time and one half his regular rate of pay
premium for all the hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek as required by 29 U.S.C.
§207(a)(1).

26.  Plaintiff’s position as a security officer was subject to the FLSA wage provisions
and was a non-exempt, hourly paid position.

27.  Plaintiff is ready, willing, and able to represent the members of the putative class
and consents to his inclusion in this collective action.

28.  Upon information and belief, Defendant employs security officers across the U.S.
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and its territories and the total members of the class are in the thousands, but, the actual numbers
affected and employed are strictly within the knowledge of Defendant but it says on its website it
has trained 6,500 security officers.

29.  Thus, this case is proper for a collective action, as the allegations complained of
herein, upon information and belief, have affected many similarly situated employees of
Defendant.

30.  Plaintiff brings this claim on behalf of a putative class of similarly situated persons
comprised as follows:

All persons employed by Command Security Corporation as security officers
anywhere in the U.S. and its territories in the three (3) years preceding the filing of this

Complaint to the present.

COUNT I

Failure to Pay Overtime Compensation in Violation of the FLSA
29 U.S.C. § 207.

31.  Plaintiff readopts and realleges the allegations set forth in paragraphs one (1)
through Thirty (30) as if fully set forth herein.

32.  Plaintiff was an employee of Defendant within the meaning of 29 U.S.C.
§203(e)(1).

33.  Defendant was Plaintiff’s “employer” within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §203(d).

34.  The overtime wage provision set forth in FLSA §207 applies to Defendant as it
engaged in commerce under the definition of the FLSA, and Defendant did not dispute that
Plaintiff was entitled to be paid time and one half his regular rate for all overtime hours worked.

35.  Plaintiff has not been paid by Defendant for all the overtime hours he has worked

in excess of forty (40) per each separate workweek at rates of one and one-half times his regular
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rate of pay.

36.  Either due to problems, malfunctions, or flaws with the company time clock
program or system, the time he worked disappeared and he had to fight just to recoup some of the
hours and pay owed.

37.  Alternatively, Defendant, through its officers or managers, intentionally and
willfully edited off or deleted his work hours from the company time records.

38.  Plaintiff reported the problems and errors to his superiors and Payroll/Billing
Cortrection Forms were submitted weeks later. However, the corrections did not result in Plaintiff
receiving the full and correct compensation for all hours worked, and not time and one half his
regular rate of pay for all overtime hours worked.

39.  Plaintiff, to date, has never been paid time and one half his regular rate of pay for
all overtime hours worked.

40.  Plaintiff also suffered unreasonable and improper delays in receiving his wages
owed, including the overtime hours which had been previously deleted by Defendant.

41,  Plaintiff was subsequently provided a check which paid him what appears to be just
straight time for some of his overtime hours, and still it took Defendant weeks to do so, causing
him financial hardship.

42, Defendant failed to timely pay Plaintiff the overtime hours on the regularly
scheduled payday following the weeks he worked overtime hours when Defendant was lawfully
required to do so.

43.  Thereafter, Defendant still has not paid Plaintiff for all overtime hours worked at
time and one half his regular rate of pay, and has never offered to pay Plaintiff an equal sum owed
as liquidated damages for the delays in paying the prior overtime wages it attempted to pay and
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correct.

44.  Defendant cannot and does not have a good faith basis for the untimely payment of
Plaintiff’s wages, and particularly his overtime wages, which still to date have not fully been paid
at the lawfully required time and one half his regular rate of pay.

45.  Plaintiff heard from several other co-workers of similar problems with their pay.

46.  Defendant was also notified even prior to this date of other employees not timely
being paid for all hours worked, dating months prior, and never corrected the problems.

47. The courts have held that a cause of action under the [FLSA] for unpaid minimum
wages or unpaid overtime compensation and for liquidated damages ‘accrues’ when the employer
fails to pay the required compensation for any workweek at the regular payday for the period in
which the workweek ends.” 29 C.F.R. § 790.21(b). See Don Martin Jr. et. al v. U.S., Case No.
13-8346, U.S. Court of Fed. Claims (07/31/2014).

48.  The U.S. Labor Department’s general FLSA interpretation as well is that “overtime
compensation earned in a particular workweek must be paid on the regular pay day for the period
in which such workweek ends.” 29 C.F.R. § 778.106.

49.  Plaintiff noticed that the time tracking system of Defendant was either faulty or
malfunctioning, as some of the hours he had worked had disappeared, been deleted or shaved off.

50.  Even Defendant’s attempts to correct the missing hours and pay fell short, and
Plaintiff suffered the loss of one or more hours from the weeks as well never reinstated.

51.  Despite bringing to the attention of Defendant the errors in the time tracking
system, Defendant never properly fixed the system and to date has never paid Plaintiff time and
one half for all the overtime hours worked.

52.  Defendant has willfully never offered to pay Plaintiff liquidated damages for the
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delays in receiving the wages he actually was paid untimely.

53.  The DOL has stated "The courts have held that a cause of action under the [FLSA]
for unpaid minimum wages or unpaid overtime compensation and for liquidated damages 'accrues'
when the employer fails to pay the required compensation for any workweek at the regular payday
for the period in which the workweek ends." 29 C.F.R. § 790.21(b)(emphasis added).

54.  Here, Defendant willfully, and without good faith failed to pay Plaintiff all overtime
hours worked at time and one half his regular rate of pay, and on the regular pay dates due, an
unlawful pay practice which upon information and belief has affected the putative class of similarly
situated security officers.

55. Defendant has continued to willfully refuse to pay Plaintiff and the class of
similarly situated, liquidated damages for all overtime wages not paid to them in a timely manner
on the regular paychecks due date.

56.  Upon information and belief, security officers of Defendant across the U.S. have
suffered the same errors and harms, and untimely payments of their overtime wages, and, the same
willful failure of Defendant to pay all overtime hours worked at rates of one and one-half times
their regular rates of pay.

57.  Defendant has willfully underpaid Plaintiff and the class of similarly situated.

58.  Defendant is, or should have been, aware of the FLSA overtime requirements,
including the requirement to pay liquidated damages when they have untimely paid overtime
wages.

59.  Defendant knew or should have known that failing to pay Plaintiff for all the hours
he worked at rates of one and one half his regular rate of pay, and not paying this on the next
regular pay check was a willful violation of the FLSA.
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60. Defendant has willfully and intentionally engaged in a pattern and practice of
violating the overtime provisions of the FLSA by refusing to pay overtime to Plaintiff and all other
security officers for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) per week at time and one half his
regular rate of pay, and, by refusing to pay Plaintiff and all others similarly situated, an equal sum
in overtime wages as liquidated damages.

61.  As adirect result of Defendant’s violations of the FLSA, Plaintiff, and the class of
similarly situated have suffered damages by being denied timely and full lawful payment of all
overtime wages in accordance with §207 and §216(b) of the FLSA.

62.  Defendant has not made a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA with respect
to its compensation of Plaintiff and the class of similarly situated.

63.  Defendant also should be barred and enjoined from further violations of the FLSA.

COUNT II
FAILURE TO PAY MINIMUM WAGES

IN VIOLATION OF 29 U.S.C. § 207
64.  Plaintiff adopts and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 30 as if fully set forth herein.

65.  Plaintiff was an employee of Defendant within the meaning of 29 U.S.C.
§203(e)(1).

66.  Defendant was Plaintiff’s “employer” within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §203(d).

67. The minimum wage provisions set forth in FLSA §206 applies to Defendant as it
engaged in commerce under the definition of the FLSA, and Defendant did not dispute that
Plaintiff is a non-exempt employee entitled to be paid the lawful minimum wage rate for all hours
worked up to 40 in each workweek.

68.  Plaintiff was not timely paid for all his work hours up through 40 on the paychecks

regular pay dates.
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69.  Either due to problems, malfunctions, or flaws with the company time clock
program, or system, time he worked disappeared, and he had to fight just to recoup some of the
hours and pay owed.

70.  Alternatively, Defendant intentionally and willfully edited off or deleted his work
hours from the company time records.

71.  Plaintiff reported the problems and errors to his superiors and Correction forms
were submitted weeks later. However, the corrections resulted in Plaintiff not being paid timely
for all his work hours in each workweek up to the first 40 hours in each week.

72.  Plaintiff suffered unreasonable and improper delays in receiving his wages owed
for the hours worked up through 40 in each work week.

73.  Plaintiff was subsequently provided a supplemental check which paid him for the
past work hours up to 40 in the weeks missing, but, the late payment caused him to suffer
financially.

74.  Defendant cannot and does not have a good faith basis for the untimely payment of
Plaintiff’s wages.

75.  Plaintiff heard from several other co-workers of similar problems reported to
Defendant which Defendant failed to correct and which continued for an extended period of time.

76.  Defendant was also notified even prior Plaintiff’s complaint, by other employees
of not timely being paid for all hours worked.

71. The courts have held that a cause of action under the [FLSA] for unpaid minimum
wages or unpaid overtime compensation and for liquidated damages *accrues’ when the employer
fails to pay the required compensation for any workweek at the regular payday for the period in
which the workweek ends.” 29 C.F.R. § 790.21(b). See Don Martin Jr. et. al v. U.S., Case No.
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13-8346, U.S. Court of Fed. Claims (07/31/2014).

78.  The U.S. Labor Department’s general FLSA interpretation as well is that “overtime
compensation earned in a particular workweek must be paid on the regular pay day for the period
in which such workweek ends.” 29 C.F.R. § 778.106.

79.  Plaintiff noticed that the time tracking system of Defendant was either faulty or
malfunctioning, as some of the hours he had worked had disappeared, been deleted or shaved off.

80. Even Defendant’s attempts to correct the missing hours and pay fell short, and
Plaintiff suffered the loss of one or more hours from the weeks as well which were never reinstated.

81.  Despite bringing to the attention of Defendant the errors in the time tracking system
and the deletion of his work hours, Defendant never properly fixed the system and to date has
never paid Plaintiff an equal sum in the wages up to 40 in each work week which were untimely
paid.

82.  Defendant has willfully never offered to pay Plaintiff liquidated damages for the
delays in receiving the wages he actually was paid untimely.

83. The DOL has stated "The courts have held that a cause of action under the [FLSA]
for unpaid minimum wages or unpaid overtime compensation and for liquidated damages 'accrues’
when the employer fails to pay the required compensation for any workweek af the regular payday

Jor the period in which the workweek ends." 29 C.F.R. § 790.21(b)(emphasis added).

84.  Here, Defendant willfully, and without good faith failed to pay Plaintiff all the
hours worked up to 40 in each workweek, and on the dates due and payable, a pay practice which
ﬁpon information and belief has affected the putative class of similarly situated security officers.

85. Defendant has continued to willfully refuse to pay Plaintiff and the class of
similarly situated, liquidated damages for all work hours up to 40 in each work week for the wages
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not paid to them in a timely manner on the regular paychecks dates.

86.  Upon information and belief, security officers of Defendant across the U.S. have
suffered the same errors and harms, and untimely payments of their regular wages.

87.  Defendant has willfully underpaid Plaintiff and the class of similarly situated.

88. Defendant is, or should have been, aware of the FLSA minimum wage pay
requirements, including the requirement to pay liquidated damages when they have untimely paid
an hourly employees’ wages beyond the regular pay dates.

89.  Defendant knew or should have known that failing to pay Plaintiff for all the hours
he worked at of at least at the required minimum wage rate, and not paying this on the next regular
pay check was a willful violation of the FLSA.

90. Defendant has willfully and intentionally engaged in a pattern and practice of
violating the minimum wage provisions of the FLSA by refusing to pay Plaintiff and all other
security officers liquidated damages for all hours worked up to forty (40) per week for the untimely
payment of their wages.

91.  As adirect result of Defendant’s violations of the FLSA, Plaintiff, and the class of
similarly situated have suffered financial harm by being denied timely and full lawful payment of
all hours worked at the required minimum wage on the dates due in accordance with §206 and
§216(b) of the FLSA.

92.  Defendant has not made a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA with respect
to its compensation of Plaintiff and the class of similarly situated.

93.  Defendant also should be barred and enjoined from further violations of the FLSA.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, TORRENCE BEAVERS, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated demands judgment against Defendant as follows:
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. ¥

d)

g)

For an award of overtime compensation at time and one-half times their regular rates
of pay for all hours worked;

For an award of an equal sum owed as liquidated damages;

Damages in the form of an award of liquidated damages at the appropriate minimum
wage rate for all Plaintiffs for all untimely paid hours up to 40 in each work week, in
amounts to be determined at trial;

For an award of Plaintiff’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs (pursuant to §216 of
the FLSA), and such other and further relief that the Court deems just and proper;

For an order certifying this case as a collective action and supervise notice to all
members of the proposed putative class of similarly situated of their rights to join this
action;

For an Order enjoining the Defendant from further violating the FLSA; and

Awarding Plaintiff a service award fee for his time and effort on behalf of all others

similarly situated.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands a trial

by jury on all questions of fact raised by this Complaint.

Dated this 16" day of January, 2018

Respectfully submitted by,

/s/ Mitchell L. Feldman, Esq.
Mitchell L. Feldman, Esq.
Florida Bar. No. 0080349
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Feldman Williams PLLC
6940 W. Linebaugh Ave, #101
Tampa, Florida 33625
Telephone: (813) 639-9366
Fax: (813) 639-9376

Email: mif@feldmanlegal.us
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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